
City Council Agenda 
 
 
NOVEMBER 10, 2020 
6:00 p.m. 
City of Turlock Yosemite Room 
156 S. Broadway, Turlock, California 
 
 

NOTICE: THIS MEETING WILL BE HELD IN ACCORDANCE WITH EXECUTIVE ORDER  
N-29-20, ISSUED BY CALIFORNIA GOVERNOR GAVIN NEWSOM ON MARCH 17, 2020, 
THE RALPH M. BROWN ACT (CALIFORNIA GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 54950, ET 

SEQ.), AND THE FEDERAL AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT. 
 

THIS MEETING WILL NOT BE PHYSICALLY OPEN TO THE PUBLIC. 
 

THE MEETING WILL BE STREAMED ON THE CITY OF TURLOCK WEBSITE AT 
WWW.CITYOFTURLOCK.ORG AND BROADCASTED ON SPECTRUM CHANNEL 2. 

 

MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC MAY ALSO PARTICIPATE IN THE MEETING VIA THE 
FOLLOWING METHODS: 

 

JOIN BY CLICKING ON THE MEETING LINK: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84924629186 
 

OR 
 

JOIN BY ACCESSING THE ZOOM WEBSITE: https://zoom.us/join 
WEBINAR ID: 849 2462 9186 

 

OR 
 

JOIN BY TELEPHONE: 669-900-6833 
WEBINAR ID: 849 2462 9186 

 

 
Mayor 

Amy Bublak 
 City Manager 
 Council Members Toby Wells, P.E. 
Nicole Larson Gil Esquer  City Clerk 
Andrew Nosrati Becky Arellano  Jennifer Land 
 Vice Mayor    City Attorney 
 Douglas L. White 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

NOTICE REGARDING NON-ENGLISH SPEAKERS:  The Turlock City Council meetings are conducted in English and translation to 
other languages is not provided.  Please make arrangements for an interpreter if necessary. 
 
EQUAL ACCESS POLICY:  If you have a disability which affects your access to public facilities or services, please contact the City 
Clerk’s Office at (209) 668-5540.  The City is committed to taking all reasonable measures to provide access to its facilities and 
services.  Please allow sufficient time for the City to process and respond to your request. 
 
NOTICE:  Pursuant to California Government Code Section 54954.3, any member of the public may directly address the City Council 
on any item appearing on the agenda, including Consent Calendar and Public Hearing items, before or during the City Council’s 
consideration of the item.  Members of the public will be allowed three (3) minutes for comments. 
 
AGENDA PACKETS:  Prior to the City Council meeting, a complete Agenda Packet is available for review on the City’s website at 
www.cityofturlock.org and in the City Clerk’s Office at 156 S. Broadway, Suite 230, Turlock, during normal business hours.  Materials 
related to an item on this Agenda submitted to the Council after distribution of the Agenda Packet are also available for public 
inspection in the City Clerk’s Office.  Such documents may be available on the City’s website subject to staff’s ability to post the 
documents before the meeting. 

http://www.cityofturlock.org/
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84924629186
https://zoom.us/join
http://www.cityofturlock.org/


Council Agenda 
11/10/20 

Page 2 
 

 

0. A. CALL TO ORDER 
 

B. SALUTE TO THE FLAG 
 

C. ROLL CALL 
 

D. DECLARATION OF CONFLICTS 
 
 
1. CLOSED SESSION: 
 

The Closed Session item(s) for this meeting have been agendized and will be heard toward the 
latter part of the meeting. 

 
 
2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA AS POSTED OR AMENDED 

This is the time for the City Council to remove items from the agenda or to change the order of the agenda.  Matters 
may be taken up out of order of the established agenda by a four-fifths vote of the City Council. 

 
 
3. PROCLAMATIONS, RECOGNITIONS, APPOINTMENTS, ANNOUNCEMENTS,  

PRESENTATIONS, AND BRIEFINGS: 
 

A. Proclamation:  Veterans Day, November 11, 2020 
B. Recognition:  2019-20 Active Military Banner Retirement, presented by Mayor Bublak 
C. Proclamation:  Law Enforcement Records and Support Personnel Appreciation, 

November 10, 2020 
D. Proclamation:  Small Business Saturday, November 28, 2020 
E. Presentation:  Carnegie Arts Center 2019 Annual Report, presented by Carnegie Arts 

Center Director Lisa McDermott 
 
 
4. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 
 

MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC WISHING TO ADDRESS THE CITY COUNCIL WILL BE GIVEN THE 
SAME TIME ALLOTMENT FOR COMMENTS (3 MINUTES) AS NORMALLY ALLOWED FOR 
MEETINGS SUBJECT TO THE PROVISIONS OF EXECUTIVE ORDER N-29-20. 

 
Pursuant to California Government Code Section 54954.3(a), this is the time set aside for members of the public to 
directly address the City Council on any item of interest to the public that is within the subject matter jurisdiction of the 
City Council and to address the Council on any item on tonight’s agenda, including Consent Calendar items. You will 
be allowed three (3) minutes for your comments.  If you wish to speak regarding an item on the agenda, you may be 
asked to defer your remarks until the Council addresses the matter. 

 
Pursuant to California Government Code Section 54954.2(a)(3), no action or discussion may be undertaken on any 
item not appearing on the posted agenda, except that the City Council, or its staff, may briefly respond to comments 
or questions from members of the public, provide a reference to staff or other resources for factual information, or 
direct staff to place the issue on a future agenda. 

 
 
5. MOTION WAIVING READING OF ALL ORDINANCES ON THE AGENDA, EXCEPT BY 

TITLE:  None 
 



Council Agenda 
11/10/20 

Page 3 
 

 

6. CONSENT CALENDAR: 
 Information concerning the consent items listed hereinbelow has been forwarded to each Councilmember prior to this 

meeting for study.  Unless the Mayor, a Councilmember or member of the audience has questions concerning the 
Consent Calendar, the items are approved at one time by the Council.  The action taken by the Council in approving 
the consent items is set forth in the explanation of the individual items. 

 
A. Resolution:  Accepting Weekly Demands of 10/08/20 in the amount of $1,518,656.41; 

Accepting Weekly Demands of 10/15/20 in the amount of $3,122,074.07 
B. Motion:  Accepting Minutes of the Special Meeting of September 8, 2020; Minutes of the 

Regular Meeting of September 8, 2020 
C. Motion:  Approving Contract Change Orders No. 2 (Supplement 1), 12, 14, 16 

(Supplement 1), 18, 21, 22, and 23 in the amount of $404,240.72 (Fund 305) with Agee 
Construction of Clovis, California, for City Project No. 0828 “SR-99/Fulkerth Road 
Interchange,” bringing the contract total to $12,003,414.28 

D. Motion:  Approving Amendment No. 1 with Quad Knopf, Inc., dba QK, of Merced, 
California, for City Project No. 17-57 “Retainer Agreement for Engineering and 
Surveying Services” in the amount of $15,680 bringing the not-to-exceed amount to 
$165,680 

E. 1.  Motion:  Approving Amendment No. 4 with Carollo Engineers of Walnut Creek, 
California, in the amount of $374,574 (Non-General Fund - Fund 420), bringing the 
contract total to $3,245,750 for professional engineering design services for City Project 
No. 18-69 "Surface Water Distribution System Improvements” 

 2.  Resolution:  Appropriating $374,000 to account number 420-52-551.51356 
“Northeast Water Storage Tank-2 Mil Gal” from Fund 420 “Water” unallocated reserves 
for professional design services for City Project No. 18-69 "Surface Water Distribution 
System Improvements” 

F. Resolution:  Initiating proceedings for the formation of the PM 20-03 Turlock Dental Care 
(Development Project No. 20-020) Landscaping and Lighting Benefit Assessment 
District and the Street Maintenance Benefit Assessment Area and directing the City 
Engineer to act as the Engineer of Work and produce an Engineer’s Report which details 
the annual costs to the development 

G. Resolution:  Initiating proceedings for the formation of the SM 19-01 FQC (Development 
Project No. 20-029) Landscaping and Lighting Assessment District and the Street 
Maintenance Benefit Assessment Area and directing the City Engineer to act as the 
Engineer of Work and produce an Engineer’s Report which details the annual costs to 
the development 

H. Motion:  Approving an Agreement with Bureau Veritas, of Sacramento, California, for 
building inspection services in an amount not-to-exceed $200,000 annually (Fund 405) 

I. Resolution:  Approving the Stanislaus Regional Water Authority Regional Surface Water 
Supply Project State Revolving Fund-Related Agreement 

J. 1.  Resolution:  Determining the connections of the existing properties at 1056 Mitchell 
Avenue and 1060 Mitchell Avenue, located outside the jurisdictional boundary of the City 
of Turlock, to existing City of Turlock water and sewer lines are exempt from the 
provisions of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to Section 
15303 (New Construction or Conversion of Small Structures), of the CEQA Guidelines 
2.  Motion:   Approving an Out of Boundary Service Agreement for Water and/or Sanitary 
Sewer Connections Affecting Real Property located at 1056 Mitchell Avenue, Turlock, 
California (Stanislaus County Assessor’s Parcel Number 042-021-049) and 1060 
Mitchell Avenue, Turlock, California (Stanislaus County Assessor’s Parcel Number 042-
021-048)  establishing the conditions under which the City would provide water and/or 
sanitary sewer services to the properties and authorizing the City Manager to sign an 
Out of Boundary Service Agreement for Water and/or Sanitary Sewer Connection 



Council Agenda 
11/10/20 

Page 4 
 

 

Affecting Real Property upon approval of the Out of Boundary Service Application by the 
Stanislaus LAFCO, and to execute all documents, applications, assurances, 
agreements, and statements that may be required to implement the agreement 
3.  Motion:  Authorizing the City Manager to certify a Stanislaus LAFCO Out of Boundary 
Service Application, requesting LAFCO approval for the properties located at 1056 
Mitchell Avenue, Turlock, California, (Stanislaus County APN 042-021-049) and 1060 
Mitchell Avenue, Turlock, California, (Stanislaus County APN 042-021-048) properties 
located outside the City of Turlock jurisdictional boundary and within its Sphere of 
Influence, to connect to the City of Turlock water and sewer system 

K. Resolution:  Accepting the Turlock Downtown Property Owners Association 2019-2020 
Annual Report to be filed with the City Clerk in accordance with California Streets and 
Highways Code Section 36650 

L. Motion:  Approving an Agreement between the City of Turlock and Clark Pest Control, 
Inc. for pest and weed control services, for a period of three (3) years, with an option to 
extend the Agreement for three (3) additional one-year terms, in an annual amount not 
to exceed $90,000 with a five (5) percent contingency for additional pest services if 
needed for the first year and an annual amount not to exceed $74,000 for the second 
and third years and renewal periods if exercised 

M. Resolution:  Reaffirming the Director of Emergency Services Proclamation of Existence 
of a Local Emergency in response to COVID-19 

 
 
7. FINAL READINGS:  None 
 
 
8. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
 

A. Request to order the vacation abandonment (AB 20-01) of all right-of-way of that certain 
City street known as Isaac Way  (Bray) 

 
Recommended Action: 
Resolution:  Ordering the vacation abandonment (AB 20-01) of all right-of-way of that 
certain City street known as Isaac Way 

 
B. Request to supersede and replace Resolution No. 2020-007 and adopt updated cost 

recovery percentages and the schedule of fees and charges for City services, to include 
City recreational services, pursuant to Turlock Municipal Code Section 3-3-301 et seq.  
(Wells) 

 
Recommended Action: 
Resolution:  Superseding and replacing Resolution No. 2020-007 and adopting updated 
cost recovery percentages and the schedule of fees and charges for City services, to 
include City recreational services, pursuant to Turlock Municipal Code Section 3-3-301 
et seq. 

 
 
9. ACTION ITEMS: 
 

A. Request to approve the sale agreement, loan agreement, and joint escrow instructions in 
a form approved by the City Attorney for the sale of the property located at 1143 Park 
Street, Turlock (APN # 061-002-059-000), to be sold to the Housing Authority of the 



Council Agenda 
11/10/20 

Page 5 
 

 

County of Stanislaus, a Body Politic and Corporate, in the amount of $433,000 subject to 
the terms and conditions as outlined in Attachment A, and authorize the City Manager to 
sign all necessary documents to effectuate the transaction  (Pitt) 

 
Recommended Action: 
Resolution:  Approving the sale agreement, loan agreement, and joint escrow 
instructions in a form approved by the City Attorney for the sale of the property located at 
1143 Park Street, Turlock (APN # 061-002-059-000), to be sold to the Housing Authority 
of the County of Stanislaus, a Body Politic and Corporate, in the amount of $433,000 
subject to the terms and conditions as outlined in Attachment A, and authorizing the City 
Manager to sign all necessary documents to effectuate the transaction 

 
B. Request to approve a promissory note, loan agreement with forgivable terms, and deed 

of trust in a form approved by the City Attorney, between the City of Turlock and Turlock 
Gospel Mission, a 501 (c)(3) non-profit organization, for the acquisition and closing costs 
of the real property located at 425 South Broadway, Turlock (APN # 043-049-060-000), 
in the total amount of $179,000 plus escrow fees in the total amount not to exceed 
$4,000, subject to the terms and conditions as outlined in Attachment A, and authorize 
the City Manager to sign all necessary documents to effectuate the transaction  (Pitt) 

 
Recommended Action: 
Motion:  Approving a promissory note, loan agreement with forgivable terms, and deed 
of trust in a form approved by the City Attorney, between the City of Turlock and Turlock 
Gospel Mission, a 501 (c)(3) non-profit organization, for the acquisition and closing costs 
of the real property located at 425 South Broadway, Turlock (APN # 043-049-060-000), 
in the total amount of $179,000 plus escrow fees in the total amount not to exceed 
$4,000, subject to the terms and conditions as outlined in Attachment A, and authorizing 
the City Manager to sign all necessary documents to effectuate the transaction 

 
C. Request to provide direction to City staff regarding establishing contribution limits for 

candidates for City Office  (White) 
 

Recommended Action: 
Provide direction to City staff to do one of the following: 

 
(1) Prepare an ordinance or resolution for the Council’s consideration establishing 
contribution limits for candidates for City office; or 

 
(2) Do nothing and default to contribution limits for candidates for City office 
established by state law 

 
D. Request to amend the 2020-21 Municipal Budget (Fund 110) as outlined in the 

Resolution to reflect increased Coronavirus Aid, Relief and Economic Security (CARES) 
Act funding priorities for the Coronavirus Relief Fund (CRF) and expenditures for 
business and community relief programs  (Wells) 

 
Recommended Action: 
Resolution:  Amending the 2020-21 Municipal Budget (Fund 110) as outlined in the 
Resolution to reflect increased Coronavirus Aid, Relief and Economic Security (CARES) 
Act funding priorities for the Coronavirus Relief Fund (CRF) and expenditures for 
business and community relief programs 



Council Agenda 
11/10/20 

Page 6 
 

 

10. CITY MANAGER REPORTS/UPDATES 
City Manager reports/updates are provided for informational purposes only and no action or discussion may be 
undertaken.  The City Manager may direct department heads to provide reports/updates at the City Manager’s 
request. 

 
A. Administrative Services 

1. Board, Commission, and Committee Vacancies  (Land) 
2. Fiscal Year 2019-20 Budget Year-End Review  (Wells) 
3. Fiscal year 2020-21 Budget First-Quarter Review  (Wells) 
4. Re-opening Public Meetings  (Wells) 

 
B. Development Services  

1. Departmental Update  (Bray) 
 

C. Fire Department 
1. COVID-19 Update  (Carlson) 

 
D. Parks, Recreation and Public Facilities 

1. Columbia Park Update  (Van Guilder) 
 
 
11. COUNCIL ITEMS FOR FUTURE CONSIDERATION 

Requests for Council items for future consideration will be scheduled in accordance with the City of Turlock Elected 
and Appointed Officials’ Handbook (Resolution No. 2019-094), unless otherwise specified by the Mayor or a majority 
of the Council. 

 
 
12. COUNCILMEMBER QUESTIONS, COMMENTS, AND ANNOUNCEMENTS 

Councilmembers may ask questions, provide comments, and make brief announcements on notable topics of 
interest.  The Brown Act does not allow discussion or action by the legislative body. 

 
 
13. CLOSED SESSION: 
 

A. Threat to Public Services or Facilities, Cal. Gov’t Code §54957(a) 
“This chapter shall not be construed to prevent the legislative body of a local agency from holding 
closed sessions with the Governor, Attorney General, district attorney, agency counsel, sheriff, or 
chief of police, or their respective deputies, or a security consultant or a security operations 
manager, on matters posing a threat to the security of public buildings, a threat to the security of 
essential public services, including water, drinking water, wastewater treatment, natural gas 
service, and electric service, or a threat to the public’s right of access to public services or public 

facilities.” 
Consultation with:  City Manager Toby Wells and City Attorney Douglas L. White 

 
B. Conference with Legal Counsel – Anticipated Litigation, Cal. Gov’t Code §54956.9(d)(2) 

“For the purposes of this section, litigation shall be considered pending when any of the following 
circumstances exist...  A point has been reached where, in the opinion of the legislative body of 
the local agency on the advice of its legal counsel, based on existing facts and circumstances, 
there is a significant exposure to litigation against the local agency.” 

Potential Case:  (1 case) 
 
 
 
 



Council Agenda 
11/10/20 

Page 7 
 

 

C. Liability Claims, Cal. Gov’t Code §54956.95 
“For the purposes of [Section 54956.9], ‘existing facts and circumstances’ shall consist only of 
one of the following: The receipt of a claim pursuant to the Government Claims Act (Division 3.6 
(commencing with Section 810) of Title 1 of the Government Code) or some other written 
communication from a potential plaintiff threatening litigation, which claim or communication shall 
be available for public inspection pursuant to Section 54957.5.” 

Claimant:  Carlos Espinoza 
Agency Claimed Against:  City of Turlock 

 
D. Liability Claims, Cal. Gov’t Code §54956.95 

“For the purposes of [Section 54956.9], ‘existing facts and circumstances’ shall consist only of 
one of the following: The receipt of a claim pursuant to the Government Claims Act (Division 3.6 
(commencing with Section 810) of Title 1 of the Government Code) or some other written 
communication from a potential plaintiff threatening litigation, which claim or communication shall 
be available for public inspection pursuant to Section 54957.5.” 

Claimant:  Lance and Jennifer LeVake 
Agency Claimed Against:  City of Turlock 

 
 
14. REPORTS FROM CLOSED SESSION 
 
 
15. ADJOURNMENT 









 

 

 

  

Annual Report 2019 
Presented to the Turlock City Manager 

 

4/15/2020 

 



1 | P a g e   *indicates a program about or for children/teens     CARNEGIE | ARTS CENTER ANNUAL REPORT 2019 

 

 

 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
Jeani Ferrari, President  

Ursula Navarro, Vice President     

Trudia Pauley, Treasurer  

Cliff Bailey 

Matt Cranford 

Juliene Flanders  

Emily Fleischmann 

Fatima Sousa Kaster 

Candy Klaschus 

Brandi LoForti 

Colbie McRae 

Michelle Morelli 

Myrna Wachs 

Forrest White 

Robert Yockey 

 

 

ADMINISTRATION 
Lisa McDermott, Director 

Part-time Staff 

Paulina Arizpe, Office Manager & Bookkeeper 

Marie Carroll, Event Support Staff 

Melissa Gomes, Rental & Special Events Coordinator 

Maggie Gonzales, Membership & Public Programs Coordinator/Volunteer Coordinator/Exhibitions 

Assistant/ Weekend Supervisor 

Megan Hennes, Education Intern 

Luigi Lipata, Event Support Staff & Weekend Supervisor 

Nic Webber, Web Designer & Preparator 

 

 

 

  



2 | P a g e   *indicates a program about or for children/teens     CARNEGIE | ARTS CENTER ANNUAL REPORT 2019 

 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY  

I am proud that the Carnegie Arts Center continues to 

expand its reach and fulfill its mission. Exhibitions and 
programs attract wide-ranging audiences, including 

regional artists, college students, art lovers from 

Sacramento to Fresno, and school children from 

Stanislaus, Merced and San Joaquin Counties.   

With a Boyett Foundation grant in 2019 to fund the 
position of Education Intern, we were able to extend promotion of our Fall 2019 field trips and have 

extra resources for docent training and program enrichment. In our commitment to education, we 
continue to work with faculty members at Stan State to provide previews of our field trip planning to 

their students in the teacher training programs. The Carnegie is proving to be a great resource for new 

teachers to learn about ways they can introduce and integrate arts into their classrooms.  

Our dedicated staff continues to work as an excellent team. With an emphasis on revenue generation, 

Rental and Events Coordinator Melissa Gomes is exploring creative marketing avenues; Maggie Gonzales 
works with our volunteer and program committees to open new and exciting opportunities that draw 

the community into the Carnegie; Paulina Arizpe is helping to bring financial recording and reporting up 
to the highest standard; together Nic Webber and I are making sure that each exhibition in our galleries 

is presented thoughtfully and creatively.  

We provided community service opportunities to 20 students in the Stan State business administration 
program during 2019. We also continue to enjoy dedicated support from our many community 

volunteers who work on special events, provide customer service and serve as docents for school 

groups. 

Finances at the end of the fiscal year (June 30, 2019) were once again boosted by solid earnings in the 
Endowment Fund. Under the Foundation’s investing policy, an amount from the earnings may be 

transferred to operating funds at the end of each fiscal year (not to exceed 4% of the average three-year 

value); a record high amount was allocated by our Finance Committee at the end of the 2018-19 FY.  

Unrestricted income generated by rental events, season sponsorships, fundraising and membership 

continue to be reliable. The Art of Design Home & Garden Tour, our second annual event dedicated to 

architecture, interior and landscape design, took place in the spring. The event was very successful, 

attracting 400 visitors to experience four unique Turlock homes.  Planning is well underway for the next 

in this series.  We expect that these annual events will continue to grow in popularity and fundraising 

capacity.   

Artists from across California take an active interest in the Carnegie’s exhibition program, with a 

growing number of submissions to exhibitions from artists living outside our immediate region. We 
receive very positive reviews of our gallery space and the high quality of our exhibitions from artists and 

visitors alike. The Carnegie continues to represent the very best of Turlock and serves as a model for 

other communities.               

 

Lisa McDermott, Director       

 

MISSION STATEMENT 

The Carnegie Arts Center is 

the community’s resource for 

discovering and learning 

through the arts. 



3 | P a g e   *indicates a program about or for children/teens     CARNEGIE | ARTS CENTER ANNUAL REPORT 2019 

 

 

 

HIGHLIGHTS 

• Exhibitions of regional and national interest continued to draw audience from throughout 

Northern and Central California. 

• Continued and expanded offerings specifically for young audiences included  

• Family Friday series 

• DiscoverArt Field Trip program 

• LightBox Theatre Company  

• Ready, Set, Show! Youth Art Exhibition 

• The Art of Design Home & Garden Tour was an exciting way to attract new audiences and 

connect with new sponsors. 

• Two Artisan Boutiques held in 2019 featured crafters, artists, and small businesses with 

handmade, creative items for sale; attendance and sales increased markedly from the spring to 

the winter event. These should become a staple in the Carnegie’s offerings.   

• Grants from Off Center Thrift & Gift, The Boyett Foundation “Make Dreams Real Fund,” The 
Bright Family Foundation, Regional Chapter of the California Retired Teachers Association, and 

anonymous individuals funded special projects/events. 

• Partnerships with regional arts groups included: Stan State Jazz, LightBox Theatre Company,  

Modesto-Stanislaus Poetry Center, CSUS Art Department, Artists Open Studios of Stanislaus 

County, Sunshine Strummers, Turlock Uke Jamz, and Village Dancers of the Valley. 

• Art Around Town, quarterly downtown art events shared among six Downtown Turlock 

business partners, continued to be successful. 

 

EXHIBITIONS  

Major undertakings for the year included My Hero! Contemporary Art & Superhero Action. This 

traveling exhibition had been on a nationwide tour, and the Carnegie benefitted from the curatorial 
work of the Bedford Gallery in Walnut Creek, CA. This was the largest exhibition we have mounted to 

date – with more 100 paintings, prints, sculptures, and photographs to display. The show generated 

enthusiastic reviews from all who experienced it, including 1,124 students from area schools. The 

popularity of the superhero theme drew in new audiences and opened up marketing options in new 

places (like Turlock Comic Con). 

The major exhibition in the spring was a juried exhibition of pastel works by artists from throughout the 

United States. The exhibition provided another opportunity in the season to deliver education to field 
trip groups. Exhibitions of works by regional artists in both the Ferrari and Lobby Galleries, and our 

annual show of art created by local children, rounded out the schedule.  

Ferrari Gallery 

Valley Focus: Cheryl Barnett & Dan Peterson  January-March 2019  

The Fine Art of Pastels  April-May 2019 
Ready, Set, Show! Youth Art Exhibition*  June 2019 



4 | P a g e   *indicates a program about or for children/teens     CARNEGIE | ARTS CENTER ANNUAL REPORT 2019 

 

Carnegie Art Showcase  July-August 2019 

My Hero! Contemporary Art & Superhero Action  September 2019 – January 2020 
 

 

Hilmar Cheese Company Lobby Gallery  

Learning to Breathe: Photographs of Nepal by Michael J. Costa February – April 2019 

Farms & Fields May – July 2019 

Yosemite Renaissance 34   August – September 2019 

Heroes Real & Imagined  October 2019 – January 2020 
Sacred Space: Photo Essay by Roger Wyan October 2019 – January 2020 

 

Total Number of Exhibitions: 10 

 

PROGRAMS & SPECIAL EVENTS 

Programs continued to highlight the important exhibitions and featured all art forms with a variety of 
events. Popular monthly series like Family Fridays and Sunday Arts Lectures continued.  The Music 

Series, in collaboration with the Jazz Studies program at Stan State, also continued during the academic 
year. Other collaborative or Carnegie-sponsored programs included the monthly Uke Jamz, the 

quarterly Poetry on Sunday series, and two productions by the LightBox Theatre Company. 

 

Family Fridays (Sponsored by Off Center Thrift & Gift) 

Watercolor Wonder (art activities)* 

Flower Power (botanical presentation & activities, with Great Valley Museum, MJC)* 

Jungle Fun (craft activity, with LightBox Theatre Company)* 
A Bug’s Life (animated film)* 

Campfire Songs & Stories (activities with Camp Jack Hazard)* 

Let's Go to the Art Show (opening reception for youth art exhibition)* 

Say Yes to the Mess! (wet and wild painting projects)* 
Back to School (craft activities)* 

The Incredibles (animated film)* 

Celtic Celebration (traditional Celtic dance and music, with St. Andrew’s Society of Stanislaus County)* 

Drum Circle (music activities with Drum Love)* 

Holiday Pajama Party: Superhero Christmas (storytelling and sing-along, with Sunshine Strummers)* 
 

Sunday Arts Lecture Series 

Valley Focus: Gallery Talk, Cheryl Barnett & Dan Peterson 
Artist’s Talk & Slide Show, Michael J. Costa 

Poetry Overturned, three Sacramento-based poets 

The Fine Art of Pastels, Ginny Burdick 

Carnegie Art Showcase Gallery Talk, exhibiting artists 
My Hero Artists Panel, Bill Concannon and Hannah Rothstein, moderated by Andrew Cain 

New Work & the Superhero Influence, Daniel Edwards 

 

Film, Literary & Theatrical Programs 

Superheroes: A Never-ending Battle, three-part documentary film screening 

Raiders of the Lost Ark (family film screening for Father’s Day)* 



5 | P a g e   *indicates a program about or for children/teens     CARNEGIE | ARTS CENTER ANNUAL REPORT 2019 

 

Poetry on Sunday Series; including Aileen Jaffe Youth Poetry Awards*, presented quarterly with the 

Modesto-Stanislaus Poetry Center 
The Jungle Book (Spring 2019) & Gilgamesh: The Hero-y King (Fall 2019), presented by LightBox Theatre 

Company* 
 

Music & Dance Programs 

Joey Archie Group (Stan State Jazz alumni) 

Regional Jazz All-Stars (various regional performers/groups) 

Turlock Jazz Summit (Pitman & Turlock High School jazz groups)* 

The Music of Pepper Adams & Donald Bird (Stan State Jazz Ensemble) 

Melodies of Peace: Northern Indian Classical Music (Pandit Debasis Chakroborty, Dr. Lovely Sharma,  and 

Pandit Gourisankar) 

Indestructible: The Music of Art Blakey & The Jazz Messengers (regional jazz artists) 

The Joe Mazzaferro Quintet  

Little Big Band Holiday (Stan State Jazz Ensemble) 

Turlock Uke Jamz (presented monthly) 

 

Special Events 

2019 The Art of Design Home & Garden Tour (one-day home tour featuring four unique Turlock homes) 

Exhibition opening receptions for Valley Focus, The Fine Art of Pastels, and Carnegie Art Showcase 

Superhero Soiree fundraiser in conjunction with My Hero! Contemporary Art & Superhero Action  
Artisan Boutiques (two pop-up craft fairs for local artisans to promote and sell their works) 

Two Conversations with the Curator Members’ events 

Members’ Holiday Party & Christmas Parade viewing 

Art Around Town and opening receptions for Learning to Breathe, Farms & Fields, Yosemite Renaissance 
34, and Heroes Real & Imagined (presented quarterly in partnership with Gallery Finesse, Stan 

State Art Space, Lightly Used Books, D-2, and Colossal Tattoo) 

 

 

Total Number of Arts/Educational Programs:  49 

         Programs for Youth/Families: 22,  Percentage of Programs for Youth/Families:  45% 

Total Number of Special Events: 12 

Total Program & Special Event Attendance: 5,488 

          Percentage of Attendance at Programs for Families:  41% 

 

FIELD TRIPS 

The DiscoverArt Field Trip program continues to be a major success and an integral part of building arts 
education in the region. Field trips were provided to classes in grades K-12, tailored for specific 

exhibitions and grade levels. The gallery experience is coupled with studio art lessons, reinforcing artistic 

concepts as well as introducing themes in other disciplines that open opportunities for teachers to 

continue the discussions in their classrooms. Lessons included depicting space in landscapes using pastels 

for students visiting The Fine Art of Pastels exhibition in the spring. All students from Ceres Unified 

School District 3rd grade participated in field trips in April-May.  

The students who attended the My Hero! exhibition in the fall learned about the use of heroes in 

different cultures, especially in the U.S. as comic books became popular during the depression and 



6 | P a g e   *indicates a program about or for children/teens     CARNEGIE | ARTS CENTER ANNUAL REPORT 2019 

 

WWII.  They experimented with the compositional elements of line and color to create 

movement/action in their superhero artwork. 

In addition to gallery-based experiences, we continue to expand our performing arts field trips working 
with the LightBox Theatre Company. Two plays based on children’s stories were presented in 2019, and 

multiple performances of each were presented specifically for school audiences in grades K-8. Each of 
the students attending received a copy of the book featured in the play (purchased with funds donated 

to LightBox Theatre Company). 

 

Number of Students Participating in DiscoverArt Gallery Field Trips: 2,551 

Number of Students Participating in LightBox Theatre Field Trips:  1,260 

Number of Schools Served: 36 schools; 10 regional communities  

Communities served:  

Stanislaus County: Turlock, Ceres, Denair, Modesto, Patterson 

Merced County: Atwater, Livingston, Los Banos 

San Joaquin County: Ripon 

Mariposa County: Mariposa 

 

CLASSES  

Class enrollment continues to increase. Marketing efforts with paid advertising and on free social media 
platforms proved successful. We added a new music class for babies and toddlers to the schedule in the 

Fall which generated good enrollment, although the pre-school art classes introduced in the Summer 
and Fall did not fare as well. Finding qualified, committed teachers remains a top priority. Donations to 

the Justin Ferrari Youth Arts Fund, called “Express Yourself,” allow us to offer 65-85% tuition 

reductions to qualifying students. Students applied for and received more than $2,500 in tuition 

assistance for 41 classes.  

    Classes offered for youth included:  

 Music Together: Ages 0-5* 
 Pre-school Mania: Ages 3-5* 

Art Start: Ages 5-8* 

 Art FUNdamentals: Ages 7-10* 

 Art Studio: Ages 10-14* 

 Specialty Classes (Superheroes, Figure Painting, Comics, Creative Writing): Ages 8-14* 
Art Explorers Art Camps* 

 

   Classes offered for adults included:  

Pastels Workshop 

 Creative Writing 
 Art Appreciation 

 
Total Number of Classes Offered:   40 

       Classes for Children /Teens:  36,  Percentage of Classes for Children/Teens:  90% 

Total Enrollment: 229 

       Percentage of Enrollments that are Children/Teens: 85% 

 



1 | P a g e   *indicates a program about or for children/teens     CARNEGIE | ARTS CENTER ANNUAL REPORT 2019 

 

MEMBERSHIP 

The Carnegie Arts Center enjoys broad-based community support.  At the end of 2019 we had 524 

members contributing at all levels, from $40 Senior Memberships to $1,000 Circle Memberships. 46% 

have been members since the start of the membership program in 2011. Carnegie Art Club for Kids was 
launched in 2016, now with 12 members under the age of 12. At the end of 2019 the decision was made 

to change the DUAL level membership to a FAMILY membership, including two adults plus their 
children under 18. The family audience is a target market for the Carnegie, and by changing from a dual 

to a family definition it is hoped that more new members will be attracted to join. 

Number of Members by Level: 

Educator:  26 

Senior: 108 

Individual: 36 

Family: 95 

Friend: 164 

 

Benefactor: 34 

Patron: 14 

Carnegie Circle: 6 

Carnegie Art Club: 12* 

Lifetime: 78

 

MARKETING  

We continue to support local newspapers and arts non-profits with advertising purchases; this includes 

ads placed with Gallo Center for the Arts, Modesto Symphony, Central West Ballet, Prospect Theatre 
Project, LightBox Theatre Company, and Stanislaus Artists Open Studios. Social media outreach and 

email newsletters are the main avenue for marketing events and programs.  

Social Media Growth  

Platform #of Likes/Followers 

on 1/2019 

#of Likes/Followers 

as of 1/2020 

Facebook 2910 3189 

Instagram 1142 1353 

Twitter 399 406 

 

 

1) Email List Growth: # of subscribers 

January 2019 March 2020 

3332 3831 

 

 

REVENUE & EXPENSE 

Permanently Restricted funds include all donations made to the Endowment Fund: 

Total pledged commitments to the Endowment Fund ended the fiscal year at $2,101,216   

The total of pledges collected at the end of FY 2018-19 were $1,896,980 



8 | P a g e   *indicates a program about or for children/teens     CARNEGIE | ARTS CENTER ANNUAL REPORT 2019 

 

Temporarily restricted revenue includes donations made to: 

• School Bus Transportation Fund, provides reimbursement for field trip transportation expenses 

• Express Yourself!  Justin Ferrari Youth Arts Fund, provides funding any program related to youth on an “as 

needed” basis, including scholarships for 65-85% of tuition cost for students who qualify   

Total held in Temporarily Restricted Funds as of 6/30/2019: $30,666 

 

Total Expense              

FY 2018-19: $368,622 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Total Unrestricted 

Income FY 2018-19:  

$306,388  

Endowment Fund 

transfer: $76,317  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Staffing

Programs & 
ExhibitionsGeneral 

Operations

Marketing

Maintenance, 
Facilities & 
Equipment

Insurance

Education

Utilities

Special Events & 
Rentals

Gift Shop & 
Consignment

EXPENSES FY 2018-19 

Endowment Fund 
Distribution

Facility Rentals

Membership

Sponsorship

Special Events & 
Fundraisers

Exhibitions & 
Programs

Classes & Field 
Trips

Grants & 
Donations

Gift Shop & 
Consignment

INCOME FY 2018-19 



9 | P a g e   *indicates a program about or for children/teens     CARNEGIE | ARTS CENTER ANNUAL REPORT 2019 

 

2019 STATISTICS 

OPEN TO THE PUBLIC:  

5 days each week (excluding only 4th of July, Thanksgiving, Christmas, and New Year’s Day); 7-10 
hours per day (Weds. through Saturday 10 a.m. – 5 p.m.; Fri. 10 a.m. – 8 p.m.; Sunday 12 – 4 

p.m.) 

EXHIBITION VISITORS:  

10 exhibitions; total visitors in gallery: 3,275 

SCHOOL PARTICIPANTS:  

36 schools; 10 regional communities served; total students in grades K-12:  

2,551 in gallery 

1,260 in theater performances   

PROGRAM & EVENT PARTICIPANTS:  

61 programs & special events offered; 5,488 total event attendance 

STUDENTS IN CLASSES:  

40 classes offered; 229 total enrollments (85% of enrollment are youth) 

VOLUNTEERS:  

67 volunteers (includes 20 students from CSU Stanislaus Business Ethics classes) 

Total volunteer hours recorded: 1,259 

FACILITY RENTALS:  

38 rentals; 50% of rentals to non-profit, government, and school groups; est. total guests: 3,700  

(not including affiliate groups) 

AFFILIATE GROUPS: 

Village Folk Dancers: weekly  

Sunshine Strummers Ukulele Group: weekly  

Turlock Uke Jamz: monthly 

Modesto-Stanislaus Poetry Center: quarterly 

LightBox Theatre Company: twice per year 

 

TOTAL SERVED: 16,000+ 

 


























